
 

 
 
 
Notice of meeting of  
Discretionary Charges in Waste Management Scrutiny Task Group 

 
To: Councillors Healey, Hodgson and Orrell 

 
Date: Tuesday, 28 October 2014 

 
Time: 5.30 pm 

 
Venue: The Frank Green Room - 2nd Floor,  West Offices 

(S015) 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1. Appointment of Chair    
 To appoint a Chair of the Task Group. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest    
 Members are asked to declare: 

 Any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests 

 Any prejudicial interests or 

 Any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so.  The deadline 
for registering is Monday 27 October 2014 at 5.00pm. 
 
Filming or Recording Meetings 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officer (whose contact details are 
at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3130/protocol_for_
webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings 
 

4. Report on Discretionary Charges in Waste 
Management   

(Pages 1 - 42) 

 This report provides information in support of the ongoing 
scrutiny review of discretionary charges in waste management 
and asks the Task Group to formally agree the review remit and 
workplan. 
 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer: 
Name:  Jayne Carr 
Contact Details: 
Telephone – (01904) 552030 
Email – jayne.carr@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3130/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3130/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings
mailto:jayne.carr@york.gov.uk


 

 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

   

 
Discretionary Charges Scrutiny Review Task Group       28 October 2014 
Report of the Assistant Director for Governance & ITT 
 

Report on Discretionary Charges in Waste Management  
 

Summary 
 

1. This report provides information in support of the ongoing scrutiny review 
of discretionary charges in waste management, and asks the Task 
Group to formally agree the review remit and workplan.  
 
Background to Review 
 

2. In March 2014 the Community Safety Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
agreed a number of possible topics for scrutiny review during 2014/15. 
One suggestion was to carry out a review of Commercial Waste i.e. 
issues around shortfall in income and a reducing customer base.  
However the Assistant Director for Transport, Highways & Waste 
suggested it would be more beneficial to the work of officers if the 
Committee carry out a review of ‘Discretionary Charges in Waste 
Management’ as it would help the Council understand where it is in 
relation to other Authorities, and help identify the Council’s position in 
support of the Place Based Services review due to be undertaken by 
officers during this municipal year. 
 

3. In July 2014, the Committee received a scoping report for the proposed 
review of Discretionary Charges which provided an introduction to 
Discretionary Charging, some initial information on a number of charging 
schemes in operation nationally, and a number of other service areas 
that could be considered in a review of charging policy (see Annex A).  
These services included: 
 

4. The Committee agreed to proceed with the review, setting up this Task 
Group to carry out the review on its behalf.  They also agreed the review 
should be completed in time to allow the findings to be fed into the 
forthcoming budget cycle. 
 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 

Proposed Review Remit & Workplan 
 

5. The proposed remit for the review is shown below: 
 

Aim 
To identify options for discretionary charging schemes suitable for 
introduction in York 
  
Objectives: 

i. To identify national best practice in regard to levels of income 
generation and recycling performance etc 

ii. To understand the issues associated with specific charging schemes 
i.e. operational and financial 

iii. To model the possible impact of the introduction of a variety of 
discretionary charges in York 

iv.  To consider what if any concessions might be appropriate as part of 
the introduction of discretionary charges in York 

 

6. The proposed workplan for the review is shown below: 

 

Review Objectives Suggested Tasks Meetings  

i To identify national 
best practice in 
regard to levels of 
income generation 
and recycling 
performance etc. 

• Consider detailed information 
about schemes being operated 
by other LAs. To include 
details about concessions 
given to residents. 

• Identify specific schemes for 
evaluation. 

Meeting 1: 
28 Oct 2014 

ii To understand the 
issues associated 
with specific charging 
schemes i.e. 
operational and 
financial. 

Investigate issues and impact 
linked with specific schemes 
identified in Objective 1. 

Visits to other 
local authorities 
(optional) 

Workshop (with 
option of inviting 
guest speakers)   

iii To consider what if 
any concessions 
might be appropriate 
as part of the 
introduction of 
discretionary charges 
in York. 

Identify specific schemes to 
model possible impact. 

Meeting 2 

Page 2



 

 

Information Gathered 

 

7. Objective (i) – National Best Practice 

A desktop study has been undertaken to compile general service 
information in regard to the bulky waste, clinical waste and gardening 
waste collection schemes being operated by 439 local authorities across 
the country – see Annex B. 

 
8. In order to identify best practice, a more in depth analysis has been 

carried out for 44 local authorities including 16 Local Authorities in our 
Family Group and a selection of 28 top performing authorities from 
2011/2012 or 2012/2013 (these are all identified within Annex B).  A 
summary of the findings from this research is detailed below: 

 
9. Bulky Waste Collection:  All 44 local authorities provide bulky waste 

collections but there is a huge variation in the charges and the 
concessionary rates available.   

 
10. There are four main types of bulky collection charging systems: 
 

i. Flat rate fee with a limit on the number of items collected: 
• 15 authorities charge a flat rate for bulky collections 
• 2 have no limit on the number of items collected for that fee 
• Most collect between 3 and 6 items, we are the only authority 

collecting ten for a flat rate fee and are the most expensive 

iv To model the possible 
impact of the 
introduction of a 
variety of 
discretionary charges 
in York. 

• Evaluation of specific schemes 
identified in Objective 2 and 3. 
 

• Based on evaluation of 
information gathered, visits to 
other local authorities and 
workshop: 

 

a. Identify charging option(s) 
suitable for implementation 
in York. 
 

b. Identify review conclusions 
and appropriate draft 
recommendations 

 

Meeting 3 

v Consider draft final report and draft recommendations. Meeting 4 

Page 3



 

• 2 authorities offer the cheapest flat rate fee £15 but with no limit 
on number of items collected (Cheshire West & Chester, 
Calderdale) 

• When broken down to the price per item, the lowest charges 
(excluding Cheshire West & Chester and Calderdale) are £2.66 
(Darlington, max 6 items £16), £3.67 (CYC, max 10 items 
£36.75), £3.75 (East Lindsey, max 4 £15) and the highest 
charges are £8.83 (Swindon, max 3 items £26.50), £10.46 
(Harborough, max 3 items, £31.40) and £12 (Bournemouth, max 
3 items £36). 

 
ii. Single fee for the first item(s) + an extra charge for all additional 

items collected. 
• 15 authorities operate this charging system 
• 7 have no limit on the number of items collected for that fee, 

others collect either 1-3, 4,5, 6 or 7 items maximum 
• It’s hard to offer any comparison between these authorities 

because the charges are so varied, but the lowest single fee is 
£12 (Rochford) and the highest charge £42 (Suffolk Coastal). 

• There is less variation in charges for additional items, ranging 
from lowest £5 (Bury, Cotswold, South Cambridgeshire and 
South Oxfordshire) to highest £15 Surrey Heath and £16 Suffolk 
Coastal. 

 
iii. Banded fees according to numbers of items collected, e.g. 1 to 3 

items, 4 to 6 items etc: 
• 11 authorities operate this charging system 
• 6 have no limit on the number of items collected, 3 collect a 

maximum of 10 
• The lowest charges for 10 items or more are £24.95 (Derby 

City), £27.20 (Solihull), £48 (Epping Forest) to the highest £65 
(Stratford), £70 (Staffordshire Moorlands) £120 (Mole Valley). 

 
iv. Other - Non standard charging systems. 

 

a)  Single fee + additional item charge -  
• 3 authorities operate non standard charging systems.  
• Dudley charge by size of item (small, medium or large). 
• South Hams charge per Transit van load. 
• West Lindsey use a points scoring system with each item 

attributed a point value. Total collection cost is determined by the 
total value of points attributed to the items to be collected.  

 
b)  Concessionary rates -  

Page 4



 

• 18 of the local authorities investigated offer concessionary rates 
for residents. 

• Qualifying criteria used by the local authorities to assess 
eligibility for concessionary rates are listed below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• There is great variation in the level of discount offered.  The most 
common is 50% discount (or thereabouts) but others offer 25% 
and 33%. Some authorities offer free collections (one or four free 
collections per year) rather than a discounted collection price. 

 
11. Clinical Waste Collection: There are two main types of clinical waste 

collection: 
 

i) Sacks 
• 25 local authorities provide a clinical waste collection service for 

sacks with 23 being free and 2 charging customers. 
• 15 do not provide any clinical waste collection service. 
• 4 have no information on their website 
• 15 of those providing a service also provide the yellow bags free.  

Only one charges for the sacks and for the collection at a rate of 
£12.70 per collection plus £9.85 for a roll of 25 large sacks 
(Bedford) 

• Of those local authorities who do not provide a collection, most 
advise contacting the local health centre or their GP to arrange 
disposal 

 
ii) Sharps Boxes 

• A total of 23 authorities offer a collection service for sharps boxes. 
• 8 local authorities provide the sharps boxes free of charge. 
• 1 authority charges for the box and collection (Bedford) at a rate 

of £12.70 per collection plus provision of sharps box: 4 litre sharps 
box = £7.70, 13 litre sharps box  =£34.08, 24 litre sharps box = 
£58.43 

Qualifying Criteria No. of Local Authorities 

Council tax benefit 6 

Housing benefit 8 

Disability benefit 2 

Student 1 

Pensioners 4 

Job seekers allowance 3 

Income support 4 

Other e.g. local rues, single occupant 7 

Page 5



 

• 1 local authority provides service for diabetic sharps only, 1 offers 
a pharmacy take back scheme as well as collections, one requires 
a home assessment before making collections 

• Where no sharps collection service is provided, most local 
authorities advise customers to contact their local health care trust 
or GP to arrange for a collection. 

 
12. Gardening Waste Collection: A desktop study undertaken to compile 

general service information on more than 400 local authorities, showed 
that approximately 95% of local authorities in England operate a garden 
waste collection service with about 40% charging householders for the 
service.  The situation across the United Kingdom is summarised below: 

 
*Food waste and cardboard might also be collected with garden waste. 

 
13. A more in depth analysis has been carried out for 47 local authorities i.e. 

the 16 in our Family Group and a selection of 31 that were mostly top 
performing authorities from 2011/2012 or 2012/2013.  A summary of the 
findings from this research is detailed below: 

 
• 46 of the 48 local authorities provide a garden waste collection 

service. 
• 30 of the 46 local authorities collecting garden waste also collect 

food waste (either combined with garden waste or a separate 
collection service). 

• 2 local authorities not providing a garden waste collection service 
are Darlington Borough Council and Calderdale Metropolitan 
Borough Council.  The latter does provide a weekly food waste 
collection service and will look at the possibility of starting a garden 
waste service when their collection contract is due for renewal in 
2016.  It is worth noting that Calderdale achieved a recycling rate of 
60.61% in 2012/2013 despite not providing a garden waste 
collection service. 

Area 

Operate A 
Garden Waste 

Collection 
Service* 

Charge 
Householders 

England 95% 40% 

Wales 95% 36% 

Scotland 84% 0% 

Northern Ireland 85% 4% 

Page 6



 

• 23 of the 46 local authorities providing a garden waste service have 
some element of charging in place (including subscriptions for basic 
service and charging for additional bins). 

• Annual subscription rates vary considerably.  Lowest: 
Richmondshire District Council - £17 per annum for a 140 litre bin 
collected from March to November (21 collections x 81p each) / 
Highest: Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames - £75 for a 240 
litre bin emptied throughout the year (25 collections x £3 each) / 
Average: Typically in range of £30 to £40 per annum. 

• Swindon Borough Council introduced a £70 charge per annum for 
the first year of their subscription scheme.  This was subsequently 
reduced to £40 per annum after consulting with customers during 
the first year of the scheme. 

• Concessionary or discounted rates were identified in 6 of the 23 
local authorities charging for some element of their collection 
service.  

• For those local authorities collecting garden waste the majority 
operate weekly or fortnightly with some reducing frequency of 
service provision in winter.  

• Garden waste collection seasons vary considerably with some 
operating throughout the year (apart from Christmas and New Year 
period) and others suspending service during the winter.  Further 
research into this aspect of service provision needs to be carried 
out. 

 
14. Subscription Service - Participation Levels - Under the existing 

Controlled Waste Regulations 2012 the Waste Collection Authority can 
make a separate charge for the collection of garden waste.  A 
chargeable opt-in service will result in some of this waste stream going 
into grey landfill bins and therefore increasing net waste 
disposal/processing costs.    

 
15. Against this there may be savings through income generated by a 

subscription service and reduced collection costs in terms of staff and 
vehicles.  Research by The York and North Yorkshire Waste Partnership 
into charging for garden waste collections indicates that once a ‘free’ 
garden waste collection system is proposed, residents may feel that this 
service should continue to fall within their council tax charge.  Thus 
moving from a free collection to one that charges may not initially be 
popular with residents and will face opposition.   

 
16. Where a charge for garden waste collection is introduced, for a service 

that was previously provided free of charge, participation rates fall 

Page 7



 

significantly.  This is typically around 25 – 30% for a converted service, 
although this can vary, in some cases down to as low as 10 per cent.  
This is supported by our consultation in 2013 which shows that only 14.5 
per cent of residents would support a charge being made for the 
collection service. 

 
17. The number of subscribers is heavily influenced by the level of charge 

made for service.  Based on information from various reports about other 
local authorities’ schemes, the table below illustrates the estimated 
impact of varying levels of charge on the number of service users. 

 

Garden Waste Collection Charge Participating Households 

£20 45% 

£25 40% 

£30 35% 

£35 30% 

£40 20% 

£45 15% 

£50 5% 

 
18. Work is ongoing to compile up to date information on Household Waste 

Recycling Centres, which many Local Authorities provide as part of 
their waste management services.   This additional information will be 
tabled at this meeting.  

 
19. Objective (ii) - Issues & Impact Linked to Specific Schemes 

In order to understand the issues and impacts associated with the 
schemes detailed in Annex B, it is suggested that the Task Group (or 
individual members of the Task Group) visit a number of the Local 
Authorities.  If Members are happy to do so, arrangements will be made 
for those visits to take place in the near future, to allow work on the 
review to progress within the limited timeframe for the review.  
 

20. Officers have also suggested running a workshop and inviting a number 
of speakers to attend.   
 

Council Plan 2011 - 2015 
 

21. The work outlined in this report will help to contribute to our corporate 
priority of protecting the environment by continuing to provide services 
that are efficient, cost effective and focussed on the customer. 
 

Page 8



 

Implications 
 

22. There are no financial, legal and HR implications arising directly from 
 information provided in this report. 

 
Recommendations 

 
23. Having considered the information within this report, Members are 

recommended to: 
 

i. Formally agree the proposed remit shown at paragraph 5 above. 
ii. Formally agree the proposed workplan shown at paragraph 6 above.  
iii. Consider and comment on the best practice information shown at 

Annex B    
iv. Agree whether or not to visit some of the best practice Local 

Authorities identified in Annex B. 
v. Agree arrangements for proposed workshop – see paragraph 20 

above. 
vi. Agree dates for future Task Group Meetings 
 
Reason: To progress the review inline with scrutiny procedures and 

protocols. 
 
Contact Details  
 

Author: 
 

Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Melanie Carr 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel No. 01904 552054 

Andrew Docherty 
AD Governance & ITT 
 
 
 

Report Approved  Date 20 October 2014 
 

Wards Affected:   All  

For further information please contact the author of the report. 
 

 
Background Papers: None                         
 
Annexes:   
 
Annex A – Introduction to Discretionary Charges 
Annex B – Information on National Local Authority Waste Collection 

Schemes 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Annex A 

Discretionary Waste Charges Scrutiny Review 
 
 
Introduction to Discretionary Charging 
 

1. In the current economic and funding climate City of York Council (CYC) 
needs to achieve budget efficiencies and savings year on year.  CYC is 
facing challenging financial circumstances requiring a fundamental 
consideration of service delivery. 
 

2. An ongoing review of waste services is being carried out to develop 
options for future service delivery.  We are looking at different ways to 
make all services more cost effective.  A key area for further 
investigation is that of discretionary charges for various waste related 
services. 
 

3. Local authorities have powers to charge for a wide range of services.  
Many of these powers derive from legislation that applies to specific 
service areas.  The Local Government Act 2003 also provides the ability 
to charge for discretionary services.  For waste related activities, the list 
of discretionary services includes green waste collection, bulky waste 
collection and some elements of household waste recycling centres 
operations. 
 

4. Historically where discretionary services have been provided free there 
may be high levels of public concern and opposition to the introduction of 
charges.  Residents may consider that these services should be 
provided through their Council Tax and not be subject to a separate 
additional charge. 
 

5. The main factor that determines the impact of charges on service use is 
the price sensitivity of current and potential service users.  People have 
different levels of price sensitivity for different services, influenced by: 

 

• Ability to pay - how charges relate to an individual’s level of 
disposable income. 

 

• Perceptions of value for money - whether charges are judged to 
provide value for money for the level of service being offered and 
influenced by the extent to which a service is deemed a necessity. 

 

• Availability of alternatives - whether the same or similar services can 
be obtained from other public, private or voluntary sector providers at 
lower cost or with greater value. 

Page 11



 

Annex A 

 

6. CYC already charges householders for a number of discretionary waste 
services but there is further scope to extend the range and level of 
charges made as evidenced in this report. 
 
Charging Schemes Operating Nationally 
 

7. Garden Waste Collection - In setting a charge for the collection of garden 
waste a decision has to be made as to whether it should: 
 
• Be relatively nominal to encourage maximum diversion of garden waste 

from the residual stream. 
 

• Cover the cost of collection to make this cost neutral to the authority. 
 

• Cover the cost of collection and treatment to deter additional arisings 
and make the full service cost neutral. 
 

8. More than a third of councils across England charge to collect garden 
waste.  Taking into account the range of factors influencing charging 
policy it is not therefore surprising that charges for the service vary 
greatly: 
 
• Richmondshire District Council - Charge £17 a year for a 140 litre bin 

collected fortnightly from March to November (21 collections).  
Additional bins are charged at £12 per year. 

 
• Kingston Council, London - Charges £75 per year for a 240 litre bin 

collected fortnightly (only break in service is over Christmas and New 
Year period).  Maximum of 3 bins per household.  For householders 
generating less garden waste there is a biodegradable bag scheme 
available.  Charge is £27 for a roll of 10 x 60 litre bags. 

 
• CYC - From September 2013 every household included in green waste 

collection service is able to have one 180 litre bin emptied fortnightly 
from April to October.  Householders with more green waste bins 
must join the additional bin subscription service to ensure their extra 
containers are emptied.  All additional green bins are subject to an 
annual charge which is currently £35 per bin. 

 

9. Bulky Waste Collection - Many councils have an incremental fee scale, 
with a minimum charge for one or more items and an additional charge 
per item or banded number of items.  Banded fees are relatively simple 

Page 12



 

Annex A 

to administer, but may lead to residents including items just to get rid of 
them cheaply, so the fee is not an effective deterrent to arisings.  Some 
local authorities choose to provide service through their residual waste 
collection infrastructure whilst others deliver a completely separate 
collection service. 
 

10. Examples of different bulky waste collection schemes are: 
 

 Test Valley Borough Council - Charges householders £20.50 for 
one item or £37.00 for multiple items (maximum of 4 items).  Free 
collections will be given for households who receive Council Tax 
Support (excluding single person discount).  A maximum of two 
collections per year, four items per collection. 
 

 South Kesteven District Council - Charges £11.00 for the first item 
and £5.00 each for all other items. 
 

 CYC - Standard charge is £36.75 for the removal of up to 10 bulky 
items per collection.  There are no concessionary rates available. 

 
11. Household Waste Recycling Centres - An increasing number of local 

authorities are implementing charges for householders disposing of 
waste at household waste recycling centres.  The majority of charges 
relate to specific waste types (particularly DIY project waste) but some 
local authorities are also charging an entrance fee for householders 
using sites. 
 

12. Examples of different charging schemes being used at household waste 
recycling centres are: 
 
• London Borough of Hillingdon - Householders bringing larger 

quantities of building/DIY waste are required to pay the full trade 
waste rate for disposing of these materials.  Current full trade waste 
rate is £150 per tonne with a minimum charge of £15 for up to 100 kg.  
Larger quantities can be defined as anything over 2/3 small bags of 
building waste.  Chargeable materials include bricks, hard core and 
glass; tiles and other roofing materials; plasterboard doors and 
window frames; bathroom suites, kitchen units and worktops; sheds 
and fence panels; asphalt, tarmac and asbestos, wooden items, 
timber and pallets. 

 

• Norfolk County Council - DIY waste is accepted at all Norfolk’s main 
recycling centres but is restricted to one large item or one 80-litre bag 
per household per week.  For example, one door, a bath tub, a toilet 

Page 13



 

Annex A 

or one fence panel.  Or one 80-litre sack of tiles, bricks or cement.  
For people who want to dispose of larger amounts of DIY waste they 
can use a ‘Pay-as-you-throw’ service, available at eight main 
recycling centres plus eight other sites.  This is likely to be a cheaper 
alternative to hiring a skip for small to medium sized DIY projects.  
Charges per visit range from £30 for a car (including estates) up to 
£68 for a Transit van. 

 

• Somerset Waste Partnership -  This is a local authority team that 
manages waste services on behalf of six local authorities.  There are 
sixteen recycling centres in Somerset.  Fourteen are Recycling 
Centres which are free to enter, and two are Community Recycling 
Sites with an entry fee of £2 per vehicle per visit. 

 

• CYC - In July 2013 charges were introduced for householders disposing 
of brick/rubble (van or trailer with up to 500kg - £21.00 per visit / 
normal family car with up to 250kg - £11.00 per visit), plasterboard 
(£5.50 per sheet or bag), bonded asbestos (£11.00 per sheet up to 
50kg / £5.50 per bag) and gas bottles (various charges dependent of 
size of item).  Facility for the disposal of these materials and items is 
only available at the Hazel Court site.  Non York residents are not 
allowed to use the Towthorpe site but can take waste to Hazel Court 
for a charge of £10 per visit. 

 
Other Discretionary Waste Services 
 

13. In addition to the main use of discretionary charges identified in this 
report there are a number of other service areas that could be 
considered in a review of charging policy.  These services include: 
 
• Commercial waste collection including service provided to schools 

and charitable organisations 
• Trade waste disposal at household waste recycling centres including 

service provided to charitable organisations & landlords/letting agents 
• Clinical waste collection 
• Provision of waste containers 
• Hazardous wastes including chemicals 

 

Page 14



Annex B        

Ref Region Local Authority

Recycling 

% 

2012/2013

League 

Position 

2012/2013

Family 

Group 

2012/2013

Bulky 

Scheme 

Type

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 

S
m

a
ll

 W
E

E
E

 

L
a
rg

e
 W

E
E

E
 

B
ri

c
-a

-b
ra

c
 

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 

P
a
in

t

M
a
tt

re
s
s
e
s
 

O
th

e
r 

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 

S
m

a
ll

 W
E

E
E

 

L
a
rg

e
 W

E
E

E
 

B
ri

c
-a

-b
ra

c
 

B
ic

y
c
le

s
 

P
a
in

t 

M
a
tt

re
s
s
e
s
 

O
th

e
r 

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

H
o

w
 m

a
n

y
 i

te
m

s
?

S
in

g
le

 c
h

a
rg

e
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

S
in

g
le

 I
te

m
 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n

1
 i

te
m

 c
h

a
rg

e

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

it
e
m

 

c
h

a
rg

e

1
-3

 i
te

m
 c

h
a
rg

e

2
 i

te
m

 c
h

a
rg

e

2
 -

5
 i

te
m

 c
h

a
rg

e

3
-8

 i
te

m
 c

h
a
rg

e

4
-6

 i
te

m
 c

h
a
rg

e

7
-1

0
 i

te
m

 c
h

a
rg

e

Other quantities or 

charges
What is collected?

C
o

n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 

ra
te

s
 a

v
a
il

a
b

le
?

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
 B

e
n

e
fi

t

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 A

ll
o

w
a
n

c
e

S
tu

d
e
n

ts

P
e
n

s
io

n
e
r

J
o

b
 s

e
e
k
e
rs

In
c
o

m
e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt

O
th

e
r

 Concessionary rates?

507 n/a Aberdeen City Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

506 n/a Aberdeenshire Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

346 South East Adur & Worthing District Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

40 North West Allerdale Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

104 East Midlands Amber Valley Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

508 n/a Angus Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

623 arc21 Antrim Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

626 arc21 Ards Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

510 n/a Argyll and Bute Council Kerbside No No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

615 SWaMP Armagh City and District Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

345 South East Arun District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

139 East Midlands Ashfield District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

320 South East Ashford Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

283 South East Aylesbury Vale District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

233 Eastern Babergh District Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

619 arc21 Ballymena Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

603 n/a Ballymoney Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

616 SWaMP Banbridge District Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No No No No No

242 London Barking and Dagenham London Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

250 London Barnet London Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

90 Yorkshire & Humber Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

39 North West Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

206 Eastern Basildon District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

304 South East Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

138 East Midlands Bassetlaw District Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

349 South West Bath and North East Somerset Council 45.83% 8 Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No
banded 

charge
max 10 £27.99 £41.99 £61.23

anything bigger than a 

microwave is one item.  

Largelist of items Not 

collected (mostly 

hazardous), garden 

waste Not collected

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Almost 50% reduction:    

1-3 items £13.99, 4-6 

items £24.55, 7-10 items 

£31.68 

707 Eastern Bedford Council 39.12% 14 Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No Yes n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Flat rate 

fee
max 5 £32 £6.40

furniture and white 

goods that are Not 

suitable for reuse

Yes Yes Yes 50%

624 arc21 Belfast City Council Both Yes No Yes Yes No No Yes No No No Yes Yes No No Yes No

235 London Bexley London Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No No Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No

180 West Midlands Birmingham City Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

114 East Midlands Blaby District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

66 North West Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

65 North West Blackpool Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes No

414 n/a Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No No No No No No No

103 East Midlands Bolsover District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

51 North West Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council Kerbside Yes No No No No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

122 East Midlands Boston Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

370 South West Bournemouth Borough Council 49.72% Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Flat rate 

fee

max 3 £36 £12.00 household items No

277 South East Bracknell Forest Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No

94 Yorkshire & Humber Bradford Metropolitan District Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes

205 Eastern Braintree District Council 56.86% 18 Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Flat rate 

fee
max 6 £34 £5.67

furniture, white goods, 

electricals etc

225 Eastern Breckland District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

265 London Brent London Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

204 Eastern Brentwood Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

419 n/a Bridgend County Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No No Yes Yes No

285 South East Brighton and Hove City Council Both Yes No Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

350 South West Bristol City Council Both No No Yes No No No No No No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

224 Eastern Broadland District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

259 London Bromley London Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

149 West Midlands Bromsgrove District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

217 Eastern Broxbourne Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

137 East Midlands Broxtowe Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No Yes No No No No No No No No No No

284 South East Buckinghamshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No No No No No No No No

64 North West Burnley Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

50 North West Bury Metropolitan Borough Council 43.03% 12 Both Yes Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

single 

item + 

additiona

No max £5 £15

furniture, white goods, 

garden waste, electricals 

etc

Yes Yes

one Free collection 

available per year - 3 

items maximum

417 n/a Caerphilly County Borough Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No

95 Yorkshire and the HumberCalderdale Metropolitan Borough Council 60.61% 7 2 Both Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No Flat rate 

fee

No limit £15 Not fridges or Freezers 

(collected separately)

No

191 Eastern Cambridge City Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

192 Eastern Cambridgeshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No

249 London Camden London Borough Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

166 West Midlands CanNock Chase District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

319 South East Canterbury City Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

421 n/a Cardiff County Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

38 North West Carlisle City Council Both No Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

410 n/a Carmarthenshire County Council Both Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes No No Yes Yes No No No Yes No

621 arc21 Carrickfergus Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

203 Eastern Castle Point Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

627 arc21 Castlereagh Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No Yes

706 Eastern Central Bedfordshire Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No

408 n/a Ceredigion County Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

113 East Midlands Charnwood Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

202 Eastern Chelmsford City Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

383 South West Cheltenham Borough Council Both Yes No Yes Yes Yes No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

326 South East Cherwell District Council 54.85% Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No
Flat rate 

fee
max 6

£16 for 

3 items
£5.33 household items No

703 North West Cheshire East Council 53.78% 4 Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No
banded 

charge
No limit £38 £76

quote 

neede

d

No more than 6 bags of 

waste.  Other usual 

items.

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Not on website

704 North West Cheshire West and Chester Council 56.10% 24 3 Both Yes No Yes No No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No
Flat rate 

fee
No limit £15

All household items.  

Not garden waste.
Yes Yes

council 

tax 

reductio

£10 per item.

102 East Midlands Chesterfield Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

344 South East Chichester District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

282 South East Chiltern District Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

63 North West Chorley Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

376 South West Christchurch Borough Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

514 n/a Clackmannanshire Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

201 Eastern Colchester Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

604 n/a Coleraine Borough Council Both No No Yes No No No No No Yes No Yes No No No Yes No

402 n/a Conwy County Borough Council Both Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No No Yes Yes Yes No

610 SWaMP Cookstown District Council Both Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes No No Yes Yes No

37 North West Copeland Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

130 East Midlands Corby Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

708 South West Cornwall Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

237 London Corporation of London Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

BULKY WASTE COLLECTION

Collected at Kerbside Accepted at HWRCs CHARGING

P
age 15



Annex B        

382 South West Cotswold District Council 58.57% 14 Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

single 

item + 

additiona

l item 

max 6 £14 £5

household furniture.  

Dining table/chairs = 3 

items

No

348 South West Council of the Isles of Scilly HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No No No No No No No No

179 West Midlands Coventry City Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

614 SWaMP Craigavon Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No No No No No No No No No

85 Yorkshire and the HumberCraven District Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

343 South East Crawley Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

258 London Croydon London Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

41 North West Cumbria County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

216 Eastern Dacorum Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

5 North East Darlington Borough Council 37.78% 15 Both No Yes Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No No No No No
Flat rate 

fee
max 6 £16 £2.66

£16.10 

for 6 

items

10 bags £7.95, £36.15 

per 15 minute 

assessment for large 

all items except 

fridge/Freezer
No

318 South East Dartford Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

129 East Midlands Daventry District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

404 n/a Denbighshire County Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

96 East Midlands Derby City Council 45.39% 9 Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No
banded 

charge
No limit £11.45 £17.70

6-15 items £24.95, over 

15 items (min charge 

£35) can be quoted.

table and 4 chairs is one 

item, four bags is one 

item

No

105 East Midlands Derbyshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

101 East Midlands Derbyshire Dales District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

606 n/a Derry City Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

368 South West Devon County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No

89 Yorkshire and the HumberDoncaster Metropolitan Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

377 South West Dorset County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

317 South East Dover District Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

629 arc21 Down District Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

178 West Midlands Dudley Metropolitan District Council 34.79% 16 Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No other No limit
small £15, medium £25, 

large £40
household waste No

532 n/a Dumfries and Galloway Council Both No No Yes No No No No No No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

512 n/a Dundee City Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

613 SWaMP DunganNon and South Tyrone Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No

701 North East Durham County Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

264 London Ealing London Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

527 n/a East Ayrshire Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No

190 Eastern East Cambridge District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

367 South West East Devon District Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

375 South West East Dorset District Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

516 n/a East Dunbartonshire Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

303 South East East Hampshire District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

215 Eastern East Hertfordshire District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

121 East Midlands East Lindsey District Council 53.57% Kerbside Yes No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Flat rate 

fee

max 4 £15 £3.75 household items No

243 London East London Waste Authority HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No No No No

524 n/a East Lothian Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

128 East Midlands East Northamptonshire District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

528 n/a East Renfrewshire Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

74 Yorkshire and the HumberEast Riding of Yorkshire Council Both No No Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

165 West Midlands East Staffordshire Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

291 South East East Sussex County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

290 South East Eastbourne Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

302 South East Eastleigh Borough Council Kerbside No No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

36 North West Eden District Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

522 n/a Edinburgh City Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

338 South East Elmbridge Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

248 London Enfield London Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

200 Eastern Epping Forest District Council 58.80% 12 Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a banded 

charge

No limit £28 £34 £48 11-15 £58 household items Yes Yes 50%

337 South East Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

100 East Midlands Erewash Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

207 Eastern Essex County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

366 South West Exeter City Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

515 n/a Falkirk Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes

301 South East Fareham Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

189 Eastern Fenland District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

612 SWaMP Fermanagh District Council Both Yes No Yes Yes No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes No

513 n/a Fife Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

403 n/a Flintshire County Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

232 Eastern Forest Heath District Council Kerbside No No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

381 South West Forest of Dean District Council Kerbside No No Yes No No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

62 North West Fylde Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

25 North East Gateshead Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

136 East Midlands Gedling Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

520 n/a Glasgow City Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

380 South West Gloucester City Council Kerbside Yes No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

384 South West Gloucestershire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

300 South East Gosport Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

315 South East Gravesham Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

223 Eastern Great Yarmouth Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

52 North West Greater Manchester WDA (MBC) HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No No No No No No No No

254 London Greenwich London Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes No No Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes No

336 South East Guildford Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

405 n/a Gwynedd County Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

247 London Hackney London Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes Yes n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

29 North West Halton Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No

84 Yorkshire and the HumberHambleton District Council Kerbside No No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

270 London Hammersmith and Fulham London Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

305 South East Hampshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No No No No

112 East Midlands Harborough District Council 56.70% 19 Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Flat rate 

fee

up to 3 

items or 

12 sacks

£31.40 £10.46
household only, No 

garden or DIY waste
No 

246 London Haringey London Borough Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No No No No Yes

199 Eastern Harlow District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

83 Yorkshire and the HumberHarrogate Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

263 London Harrow London Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

299 South East Hart District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

4 North East Hartlepool Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No Yes No No Yes Yes No No No No No

289 South East Hastings Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

298 South East Havant Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

241 London Havering London Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

148 West Midlands Herefordshire Council Both No No Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

218 Eastern Hertfordshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

214 Eastern Hertsmere Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

99 East Midlands High Peak Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

504 n/a Highland Council Both No No Yes No No No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

262 London Hillingdon London Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

111 East Midlands Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No No No No No No No No

342 South East Horsham District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

261 London Hounslow London Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

188 Eastern Huntingdonshire District Council 55.91% Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
banded 

charge
No limit £23 £32 £48 household items No

61 North West Hyndburn Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

518 n/a Inverclyde Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

231 Eastern Ipswich Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

401 n/a Isle of Anglesey County Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

306 South East Isle of Wight Council n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

245 London Islington London Borough Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No No No No No

321 South East Kent County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No No No No

127 East Midlands Kettering Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No No No No No No No No No

P
age 16



Annex B        

222 Eastern Kings Lynn and West Norfolk Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

75 Yorkshire and the HumberKingston upon Hull City Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

92 Yorkshire and the HumberKirklees Metropolitan Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

72 North West KNowsley Metropolitan Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

268 London Lambeth London Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No No

67 North West Lancashire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No

60 North West Lancaster City Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

620 arc21 Larne Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

91 Yorkshire and the HumberLeeds City Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

107 East Midlands Leicester City Council Both No No No No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No No No No No

115 East Midlands Leicestershire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes Yes No No No No

288 South East Lewes District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

253 London Lewisham London Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No

164 West Midlands Lichfield District Council 57.84% 16 Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
single 

item + 

additiona

max 4 £15 £6.20 household items Yes Yes
£11 plus £4.50 per 

additional

605 n/a Limavady Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No No No No No

120 East Midlands Lincoln City Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

123 East Midlands Lincolnshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes No No No No No No

628 arc21 Lisburn Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

71 North West Liverpool City Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

181 Eastern Luton Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No Yes

608 n/a Magherafelt District Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

314 South East Maidstone Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

198 Eastern Maldon District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

146 West Midlands Malvern Hills District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

49 North West Manchester City Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

135 East Midlands Mansfield District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

313 South East Medway Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes

110 East Midlands Melton Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

390 South West Mendip District Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

73 North West Merseyside Recycling and Waste Authority HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No

413 n/a Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

256 London Merton London Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

365 South West Mid Devon District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

230 Eastern Mid Suffolk District Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

341 South East Mid Sussex District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

3 North East Middlesbrough Council Both Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Yes No

523 n/a Midlothian Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

279 South East Milton Keynes Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

335 South East Mole Valley District Council 56.69% 20 Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
banded 

charge
max 10 £39.50 £65 6-10 £120

beds, fridge/Freezer, 

sofa, tv, wardrobe
No

415 n/a Monmouthshire County Council Both No No No No No No Yes No No No No No No No No No

505 n/a Moray Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

602 n/a Moyle District Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No

411 n/a Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

297 South East New Forest District Council Both No No Yes No No No No No No Yes Yes No No Yes No No

134 East Midlands Newark and Sherwood District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

24 North East Newcastle upon Tyne City Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

163 West Midlands Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

240 London Newham London Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

420 n/a Newport City Council Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes No

617 SWaMP Newry and Mourne District Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

622 arc21 Newtownabbey Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

226 Eastern Norfolk County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No Yes No No

526 n/a North Ayrshire Council Both No No Yes Yes Yes No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No

364 South West North Devon District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

374 South West North Dorset District Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

625 arc21 North Down Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

98 East Midlands North East Derbyshire District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

76 Yorkshire and the HumberNorth East Lincolnshire Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

213 Eastern North Hertfordshire District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

119 East Midlands North Kesteven District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

519 n/a North Lanarkshire Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No No No No No No No

77 Yorkshire and the HumberNorth Lincolnshire Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yesall household items including textiles where suitable 

251 London North London Waste Authority HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes

221 Eastern North Norfolk District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

385 South West North Somerset Council 58.43% 15 Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

23 North East North Tyneside Metropolitan Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

172 West Midlands North Warwickshire Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

109 East Midlands North West Leicestershire District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

86 Yorkshire and the HumberNorth Yorkshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No No No No

126 East Midlands Northampton Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

131 East Midlands Northamptonshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No

702 North East Northumberland Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No

220 Eastern Norwich City Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

133 East Midlands Nottingham City Council Both Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

140 East Midlands Nottinghamshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes No No No No No

171 West Midlands Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No

108 East Midlands Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

48 North West Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No No No No No

611 SWaMP Omagh District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

502 n/a Orkney Islands Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

325 South East Oxford City Council Kerbside No No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

327 South East Oxfordshire County Council 59.79% 11 HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

409 n/a Pembrokeshire County Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No Yes Yes No No Yes Yes No

59 North West Pendle Borough Council Kerbside Yes No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

509 n/a Perth and Kinross Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes No No No No No No

187 Eastern Peterborough City Council Both Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No

363 South West Plymouth City Council Both Yes No Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

369 South West Poole Borough Council Both Yes No Yes No Yes No No No No No No No No No No No

293 South East Portsmouth City Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

407 n/a Powys County Council both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

58 North West Preston City Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

373 South West Purbeck District Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

275 South East Reading Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

239 London Redbridge London Borough Council Both No No Yes No No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No No No No

2 North East Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

145 West Midlands Redditch Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

334 South East Reigate and Banstead Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

525 n/a Renfrewshire Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

418 n/a Rhondda CyNon Taff County Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No

57 North West Ribble Valley Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No Yes n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

260 London Richmond upon Thames London Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No

82 Yorkshire and the HumberRichmondshire District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

47 North West Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

197 Eastern Rochford District Council 66.75% 1 Kerbside No No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
single 

item + 
No max £12 £6

furniture and electrical 

waste
No

56 North West Rossendale Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

287 South East Rother District Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

88 Yorkshire and the HumberRotherham Metropolitan Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

269 London Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

257 London Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Both No No No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No No No No No No

273 South East Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

170 West Midlands Rugby Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

333 South East Runnymede Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

132 East Midlands Rushcliffe Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

296 South East Rushmoor Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

106 East Midlands Rutland County Council 59.83% 10 Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Flat rate 

fee

max 4 £20 £5.00 household items Yes Yes Yes up to 4 Free collections 

per year

P
age 17



Annex B        

81 Yorkshire and the HumberRyedale District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

46 North West Salford City Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

177 West Midlands Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

80 Yorkshire and the HumberScarborough Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

530 n/a Scottish Borders Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

389 South West Sedgemoor District Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

70 North West Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

79 Yorkshire and the HumberSelby District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

312 South East SeveNoaks District Council Kerbside No No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

87 Yorkshire and the HumberSheffield City Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

311 South East Shepway District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

501 n/a Shetland Isles Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No Yes No No Yes

705 West Midlands Shropshire Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

274 South East Slough Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

176 West Midlands Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council 43.92% 11 Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No
banded 

charge
max 10 £12.85 £20.50 6-10 £27.20

No garden waste - long 

list of No items!
Yes

means 

tested 
25% reduction

391 South West Somerset County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

531 n/a South Ayrshire Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

281 South East South Bucks District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

186 Eastern South Cambridgeshire District Council 55.97% 25 Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a single 

item + 

No max £30 £5 household items No

97 East Midlands South Derbyshire District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

392 South West South Gloucestershire Council 51.42% 5 Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No
Flat rate 

fee
max 3 £22 £7.33

 Non household items 

half load £28, full load 

£70.  Garden waste and 

rubble can be collected 

for a charge

household items and 

fridge/freezers
Yes Yes Yes Yes 50%

362 South West South Hams District Council 53.85% Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a other other

£51.50 per transit van 

load, white goods 

£31.50 for 2 items plus 

£15.70 per additional 

item

household items No

118 East Midlands South Holland District Council Both No Yes Yes No No No Yes No No Yes Yes No No No No No

117 East Midlands South Kesteven District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

35 North West South Lakeland District Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

529 n/a South Lanarkshire Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No

219 Eastern South Norfolk District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

125 East Midlands South Northamptonshire Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

324 South East South Oxfordshire District Council 65.32% 2 Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

single 

item + 

additiona

l item 

max 6 £14 £5

household furniture.  

Dining table/chairs = 3 

items

No

55 North West South Ribble Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

388 South West South Somerset District Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

162 West Midlands South Staffordshire District Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

22 North East South Tyneside Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

292 South East Southampton City Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

194 Eastern Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

252 London Southwark London Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

332 South East Spelthorne Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

212 Eastern St Albans City and District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

229 Eastern St Edmundsbury Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No Yes No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

69 North West St Helens Metropolitan Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

161 West Midlands Stafford Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

167 West Midlands Staffordshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No Yes No No

160 West Midlands Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 53.95% Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a banded 

charge

No limit £10 £35 £55 £70 household items No

211 Eastern Stevenage Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

511 n/a Stirling Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No Yes Yes No No No Yes No

45 North West Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council 60.97% 6 1 Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No
banded 

charge
max 8 £18.82

£37.50 

for 2
£56.72

£109.78 per hour for a 

garden/building 

collection. (No discount

most household items Yes Yes Yes
Leisure 

Key 

Band A 

50%

1 North East Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No Yes No No Yes Yes No No No Yes No

158 West Midlands Stoke on Trent City Council Both No Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No

607 n/a Strabane District Council Both Yes No Yes No Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

169 West Midlands Stratford-on-Avon District Council 60.28% 8 Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a banded 

charge

No limit £35 £45 £55 10-12 £65 household items No

379 South West Stroud District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

228 Eastern Suffolk Coastal District Council 56.66% 21 Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
single 

item + 

additiona

No limit £42.00 £16.00
furniture, white goods, 

electricals etc
No

234 Eastern Suffolk County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No

21 North East Sunderland City Metropolitan Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

339 South East Surrey County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No Yes No No No

331 South East Surrey Heath Borough Council 63.77% 4 Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

single 

item + 

additiona

l item 

charge

No max £31 £15
£15 admin charge 

included 

household items, 

clearance of house and 

garage £175, dead pet 

£42

Yes Yes Yes Yes

sole 

occupa

nt

over 50% up to 5 items 

£42

255 London Sutton London Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

310 South East Swale Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

412 n/a Swansea City and County Council Both Yes No Yes No No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No

393 South West Swindon Borough Council 44.33% 10 Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes No No Yes No No
Flat rate 

fee

up to 

three 
£26.50 £8.83

household items but Not 

black sacks
No

44 North West Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

159 West Midlands Tamworth Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

330 South East Tandridge District Council Kerbside No No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

387 South West Taunton Deane Borough Council Both Yes No Yes No Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

361 South West Teignbridge District Council 56.38% 23 Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
single 

item + 

additiona

No max £24 £7
fridge/Freezer, sofas, 

TVs
Yes Yes

almost 50% £11.90 for 

first item

151 West Midlands Telford and Wrekin Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No No

196 Eastern Tendring District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

295 South East Test Valley Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

378 South West Tewkesbury Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

309 South East Thanet District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

210 Eastern Three Rivers District Council 61.96% 5 Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

single 

item + 

additiona

l item 

charge

max 3 £10.00 £35.00
More than 5 items needs 

a quote. 
Yes

£17.50 for up to 3 items - 

£5.00 per extra item to 

maximum of 5. Quote 

needed for any more 

items. Maximum of 2 

collections in any single 

financial year.

193 Eastern Thurrock Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No

308 South East Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

360 South West Torbay Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes No No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

416 n/a Torfaen County Borough Council Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

359 South West Torridge District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

236 London Tower Hamlets London Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No No No No No No No

43 North West Trafford Metropolitan Borough Council 47.90% 6 Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No Flat rate 

fee

max 5 £28 £5.60 household items No

307 South East Tunbridge Wells Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

195 Eastern Uttlesford District Council 55.23% Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a single 

item + 

No max £7.75 £15.50 household items No

422 n/a Vale of Glamorgan Council Both No No No No No No Yes No No No No No No No No No

323 South East Vale of White Horse District Council 65.13% 3 Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

single 

item + 

additiona

l item 

charge

up to 6 

items
£6.90 £33.00

Maximum of 6 items. 

ANother collection must 

be booked for more 

items.

General household items. No

93 Yorkshire and the HumberWakefield City Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

175 West Midlands Walsall Metropolitan Borough Council Both Yes No Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No

244 London Waltham Forest London Borough Council Both Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No No Yes Yes No No No No No

267 London Wandsworth London Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

26 North West Warrington Borough Council 42.94% 13 Kerbside Yes No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

single 

item + 

additiona

l item 

up to 5 

items 

per 

collectio

£6.67 £20
household items, Not 

bagged waste
Yes

No 

detail

one Free collection 

available per year for 

maximum of 3 items

P
age 18



Annex B        

168 West Midlands Warwick District Council 56.52% 22 Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
banded 

charge

Maximu

m of 5 

items

£35

4 to 5 items charge is 

£45. Maximum of 5 

items collected.

General household items. Yes

State 

pension 

or 

benefits

.

1 item £13, 2 = £16,       3 

= £19, 4 = £23,            5 

= £29

173 West Midlands Warwickshire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No No No No No No No No

209 Eastern Watford Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No No No No No

227 Eastern Waveney District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

329 South East Waverley Borough Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

286 South East Wealden District Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

124 East Midlands Wellingborough Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

208 Eastern Welwyn Hatfield District Council Kerbside No No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

276 South East West Berkshire Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

358 South West West Devon Borough Council 57.01% 17 Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Flat rate 

fee

Maximu

m of 2 

£16.50 £8.25 General household 

items.

Yes Yes Yes £14.00 for up to 2 items.

372 South West West Dorset District Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

517 n/a West Dunbartonshire Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

54 North West West Lancashire District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

116 East Midlands West Lindsey District Council 53.95% Kerbside No No Yes No No No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a other other
up to 6 points £21 plus 

£3.80 per point

three piece suite 3 

points, 2 sofas 3 points, 

cooker 2 points, kitchen 

table 1 point etc full list 

available.

No

266 London West London Waste Authority HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No No Yes No

521 n/a West Lothian Council Both Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

322 South East West Oxfordshire District Council 60.11% 9 Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a single 

item + 

up to 4 

items 

£5.80 1 to 4 items £18.20. Non 

standard items are 

   No

386 South West West Somerset District Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

347 South East West Sussex County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No Yes Yes No

503 n/a Western Isles Council (Eilean Siar) Both Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No No

271 London Western Riverside Waste Authority Both No No No No No No No No No Yes Yes No Yes Yes No No

238 London Westminster City Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

371 South West Weymouth and Portland Borough Council Kerbside Yes No Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

42 North West Wigan Metropolitan Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

709 South West Wiltshire Council both No No Yes No No No No No No No Yes No No No No No

294 South East Winchester City Council Kerbside No Yes Yes No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

68 North West Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No No No

328 South East Woking Borough Council 58.57% 13 Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

single 

item + 

additiona

l item 

charge

Maximu

m of 7 

items

£28 £10

Appointments made for 

collections on Monday 

to Wednesday (am or 

pm) for an additional 

charge of £22.

General household 

items.
Yes

Amy 

means 

tested 

benefits

£14 for one item. Each 

additional item is £5. 

272 South East Wokingham Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

174 West Midlands Wolverhampton City Council Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No

143 West Midlands Worcester City Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

150 West Midlands Worcestershire County Council HWRC n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a No Yes Yes No No No No No

340 South East Worthing Borough Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

406 n/a Wrexham County Borough Council Kerbside Yes No Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

142 West Midlands Wychavon District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

280 South East Wycombe District Council Both No Yes Yes No No No No No No No No No No No No No

53 North West Wyre Borough Council Kerbside Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

141 West Midlands Wyre Forest District Council Kerbside No No No No No No No No n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

78 Yorkshire & Humber York City Council 45.96% 7 Both No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No No
Flat rate 

fee
max 10 £36.75 £3.67 household items No

P
age 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

Ref. Region Local Authority

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 %

 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

L
e
a
g
u
e
 P

o
s
it
io

n
 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

F
a
m

ily
 G

ro
u
p
 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

Y
&

N
Y

W
P

 

2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

Is
 t
h
e
re

 a
  

s
c
h
e
m

e
?

Scheme name
Households 

on scheme

Container Frequency

Is
 i
t 
a
 c

h
a
rg

e
a
b
le

 

s
c
h
e
m

e
?

Service 

Provider

G
a
rd

e
n
 W

a
s
te

 -
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

C
o
n
ta

in
e
rs

Charges

Food Waste - Collection 

Frequency & Containers

507 n/a
Aberdeen City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
62000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

506 n/a Aberdeenshire Council No n/a 0 n/a n/a No n/a

346 South East

Adur District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
13900

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin >240 litres

Weekly, 

Weekly

Yes DSO / in 

house

40 North West
Allerdale Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
33414

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

104 East Midlands
Amber Valley Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
12300

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

508 n/a
Angus Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
45946

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

623 arc21
Antrim Borough Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
16500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

626 arc21

Ards Borough Council

Yes For all properties 27208

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

510 n/a
Argyll and Bute Council

No n/a 0
n/a n/a No n/a

615 SWaMP

Armagh City and 

District Council Yes

Brown Bin Kitchen 

and Garden 

Collection

16076

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No Other

345 South East
Arun District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
10500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

139 East Midlands
Ashfield District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
12262

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

320 South East

Ashford Borough 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
10200

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

283 South East
Aylesbury Vale District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
71800

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

233 Eastern
Babergh District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
9600

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

619 arc21
Ballymena Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
25000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

603 n/a
Ballymoney Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
7000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

616 SWaMP

Banbridge District 

Council Yes

For all properties with 

gardens and hh food 

waste

18662

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

242 London

Barking and Dagenham 

London Borough 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
58380

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

250 London
Barnet London Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
98074

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

90
Yorkshire & 

Humber

Barnsley Metropolitan 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
102500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

39 North West
Barrow-in-Furness 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
19000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

206 Eastern
Basildon District 

Council
Yes All properties 74400

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 21



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

304 South East

Basingstoke and Deane 

Borough Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
6500

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes WMC

138 East Midlands
Bassetlaw District 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

349 South West

Bath and North East 

Somerset Council

45.83% 8 Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
76250

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly throught 

year except for 

suspension during 

Christmas and New 

Year period. 

Households can 

use wheeled bin 

service or purchase 

individual paper 

sacks that are 

biodegradable.

Customers can choose 

between a large (240 litre, 

H 107cm x W 58cm x 

73cm) or small bin (140 

litre, H 106cm x W 49cm x 

55cm). Both services cost 

£38.50 for 12 months 

collection service. There is 

a one-off delivery charge of 

£2.70 for either bin.

Part of weekly recycling 

and rubbish collection 

system.

707 Eastern Bedford Council 39.12% 14 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
43599

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

Standard service is 

1 x 240 litre bin 

emptied fortnightly 

or provision of 2 

rolls of garden 

waste sacks per 

year.

Additional bins can be 

purchased for a one off 

charge of £38.50. Sack 

users can buy additional 

sacks at £7.45 per roll.

624 arc21 Belfast City Council Yes
Brown caddy 

collection
70000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

235 London
Bexley London Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
78000

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less

Weekly No WMC

180 West Midlands
Birmingham City 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
360000

Non-reusable 

Sack

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

114 East Midlands Blaby District Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
17928

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

66 North West
Blackburn with Darwen 

Borough Council
Yes

Kerbside collection 

green waste
27667

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

65 North West
Blackpool Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
51884

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

414 n/a
Blaenau Gwent County 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
32000

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

103 East Midlands
Bolsover District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
34600

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

51 North West
Bolton Metropolitan 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
82597

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

122 East Midlands
Boston Borough 

Council
Yes

Kerbside Garden 

Waste
13000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

370 South West
Bournemouth Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
25000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

277 South East
Bracknell Forest 

Borough Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
15000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin >240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

94
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Bradford Metropolitan 

District Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
174000

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Monthly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 22



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

205 Eastern

Braintree District 

Council
56.86% 18 Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
54431

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly. Very 

little information 

about service on 

website.

Weekly food waste 

collection. Very little 

information about service 

on website.

225 Eastern
Breckland District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
17100

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

265 London
Brent London Borough 

Council
Yes

Mixed food and 

garden collection
60000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No WMC

204 Eastern

Brentwood Borough 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
27625

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

419 n/a
Bridgend County 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
58788

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes WMC

285 South East
Brighton and Hove City 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

350 South West

Bristol City Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
159707

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Weekly, 

Weekly

Yes WMC

224 Eastern
Broadland District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
23401

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

259 London

Bromley London 

Borough Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
12500

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

149 West Midlands
Bromsgrove District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
17000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

217 Eastern
Broxbourne Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
30000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

137 East Midlands
Broxtowe Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
49349

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

64 North West
Burnley Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
20130

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

50 North West

Bury Metropolitan 

Borough Council

43.03% 12 Yes All properties 82000

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

Brown bins (for 

garden waste and 

food waste) are 

emptied once every 

2 weeks.

Collected with garden 

waste.

417 n/a
Caerphilly County 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
77232

Reusable Sack Weekly No DSO / in 

house

95
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Calderdale Metropolitan 

Borough Council

60.61% 7 2 No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a Weekly food waste collection.

191 Eastern

Cambridge City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
45310

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 140 litres or 

less, Wheeled bin 

181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

P
age 23



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

249 London

Camden London 

Borough Council
Yes

garden waste 

kerbside with food 

presented separately

58582

Reusable Sack Weekly No WMC

166 West Midlands
CanNock Chase District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
44653

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

319 South East

Canterbury City Council

Yes
Garden scheme - 

open to all
56142

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

421 n/a

Cardiff County Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
148486

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 141-180 litres, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

38 North West

Carlisle City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
38831

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

410 n/a
Carmarthenshire 

County Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
83825

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly Yes DSO / in 

house

621 arc21
Carrickfergus Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
16167

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

203 Eastern
Castle Point Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
37660

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

627 arc21
Castlereagh Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
25500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

706 Eastern
Central Bedfordshire 

Council
Yes South Central area 50000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

706 Eastern
Central Bedfordshire 

Council
Yes North Central area 54500

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No WMC

408 n/a
Ceredigion County 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
34380

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly Yes DSO / in 

house

113 East Midlands
Charnwood Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
27000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

202 Eastern
Chelmsford City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
65000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

383 South West          

Cheltenham Borough 

Council Yes
Disposable garden 

waste bag scheme
15000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes Other

326 South East

Cherwell District 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
58000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly  - Brown 

wheeled bin - 

combined garden / 

food waste

Fortnightly - Brown 

Kitchen caddy and Brown 

wheeled bin - combined 

garden / food waste 

(liners not provided) 

703 North West

Cheshire East Council

53.78% 4 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
163010

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly 

collection of 1 free 

garden waste bin 

offered to all 

households with 

gardens. Collection 

service suspended 

during winter but no 

specific information 

on website.

Offer additional 

garden waste bins at an 

annual charge of £45 each.

704 North West

Cheshire West and 

Chester Council 56.10% 24 3 Yes All properties 137000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC Fortnightly 

collection service.

Offer additional 

garden waste bins at an 

annual charge of £40 each.

Food waste collection 

service. Very little  

information on website.

P
age 24



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

102 East Midlands       

Chesterfield Borough 

Council

Yes
garden waste 

collection
44100

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin >240 litres, 

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No WMC

344 South East

Chichester District 

Council Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - weekly 

collection

10350

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

282 South East

Chiltern District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
14315

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

63 North West
Chorley Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
38800

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

376 South West
Christchurch Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
23380

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

514 n/a
Clackmannanshire 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
21633

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Other No DSO / in 

house

201 Eastern
Colchester Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
68610

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

604 n/a
Coleraine Borough 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

402 n/a
Conwy County Borough 

Council
Yes Garden Waste 45433

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes WMC

610 SWaMP
Cookstown District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
7000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

37 North West
Copeland Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
23872

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

130 East Midlands
Corby Borough Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
25000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

708 South West

Cornwall Council

Yes

Kerbside Garden 

Waste - Bag (Ad-hoc - 

6 collections)

20691

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

237 London Corporation of London No n/a 0 n/a n/a No n/a

382 South West

Cotswold District 

Council

58.57% 14 Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
19700

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Weekly, 

Weekly

Yes Other Weekly ‘opt in’ 

subscription service

Green wheelie bin 

or in Brown garden 

waste sacks

£30 per annual garden 

waste wheeled bin licence 

or £30 per supply of 50 

brown garden waste sacks. 

Service runs 1st April to 

31st March

Brown paper garden waste 

sacks can either be ordered 

or they can be purchased 

directly from the Council 

offices £30 for 50 or £10 for 

10.  50% discount for 

householders who receive 

Council Tax or Housing 

Benefit.

Weekly  - 10 litre 

container provided - no 

kitchen caddy - liners are 

not provided. Food waste 

can also be added to 

green waste bin is users 

are susbribed.

348 South West
Council of the Isles of 

Scilly
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

179 West Midlands
Coventry City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
113679

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

614 SWaMP

Craigavon Borough 

Council Yes

For all urban 

properties with 

gardens

31000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 25



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

85
Yorkshire & 

Humber

Craven District Council

43.38% 4 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
15300

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

Subscribing 

residents have a 

240 litre wheeled 

brown bin emptied 

fortnightly from 

March to November 

only.

There is a subscription 

charge of £24 per 

brown bin, payable in 

advance, for collection up 

to March 2015.

343 South East

Crawley Borough 

Council Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - fortnightly 

collection

5000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

258 London
Croydon London 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
119365

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No WMC

216 Eastern 

Dacorum Borough 

Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
58000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

5 North East
Darlington Borough 

Council
37.78% 15 No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

318 South East
Dartford Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
4600

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

129 East Midlands
Daventry District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
32500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

404 n/a

Denbighshire County 

Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
40000

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

96 East Midlands

Derby City Council

45.39% 9 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
83500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

16 collections per 

year run from 14th 

April - 21st 

November 2014. 

The service costs £40 for 

your first brown bin and £20 

for each additional brown 

bin.

Appears that food waste 

used to be collected with 

garden waste but this 

has now stopped.

101 East Midlands       

Derbyshire Dales 

District Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
28724

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 140 litres or 

less, Wheeled bin 

181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

606 n/a Derry City Council No n/a 0 n/a n/a No n/a

89
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Doncaster Metropolitan 

Borough Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
125000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

317 South East
Dover District Council

Yes
Chargeable garden 

service
4500

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes WMC

629 arc21
Down District Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
17500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No Other

178 West Midlands

Dudley Metropolitan 

District Council

34.79% 16 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
114830

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly 

collection service 

available to all 

households with a 

garden.

Annual service with brown 

topped bin/bag: £91.05 

(£58.95 from 1st July) 

Annual service without 

brown topped bin/bag: 

£64.30 (£32.15 from 1st 

July) Renew annual 

service: £64.30 (£32.15 

from 1st July)

532 n/a
Dumfries and Galloway 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

512 n/a
Dundee City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
42592

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

613 SWaMP

DunganNon and South 

Tyrone Borough 

Council

Yes
Brown bin collection - 

for urban areas only
13205

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 26



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

701 North East

Durham County Council

Yes
Former Teesdale 

area
165413

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No Commun

ity Group

264 London

Ealing London Borough 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
0

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

527 n/a

East Ayrshire Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
54819

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Monthly, 

Monthly

No DSO / in 

house

190 Eastern
East Cambridge District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
34340

Non-reusable 

Sack

Fortnightly No WMC

367 South West

East Devon District 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
22000

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes Commun

ity Group

375 South West

East Dorset District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens on Dorset 

Waste Partnership 

Scheme

39160

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly Yes DSO / in 

house

516 n/a
East Dunbartonshire 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
40000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

303 South East

East Hampshire District 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
7133

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

215 Eastern

East Hertfordshire 

District Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
49100

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No WMC

121 East Midlands
East Lindsey District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
61000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

524 n/a
East Lothian Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
41447

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

128 East Midlands

East Northamptonshire 

District Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
3700

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

528 n/a
East Renfrewshire 

Council
Yes

Food & Garden 

Waste Collection
37300

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

74
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

East Riding of Yorkshire 

Council Yes Brown bin collection 145135

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

165 West Midlands
East Staffordshire 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
47145

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

290 South East

Eastbourne Borough 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
23590

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No WMC

302 South East
Eastleigh Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
11000

Reusable Sack Weekly Yes DSO / in 

house

36 North West
Eden District Council

Yes
Garden Waste 

Scheme
17381

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No Other

522 n/a
Edinburgh City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
120000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

522 n/a

Edinburgh City Council

Yes Community scheme 530

Reusable Sack Weekly No Commun

ity Group

338 South East

Elmbridge Borough 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
15900

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

248 London
Enfield London Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
76000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 27



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

200 Eastern

Epping Forest District 

Council

58.80% 12 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
49000

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres

Weekly No WMC Weekly - Green 

Wheelie bin for 

Garden & food 

waste

Weekly - small Kitchen 

caddy &  Large Green 

Wheelie bin for Garden & 

food waste. Compostable 

liners not provided

337 South East

Epsom and Ewell 

Borough Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
11000

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

100 East Midlands
Erewash Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
50000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

999 N/A
Example Borough

Yes
All properties with 

gardens
61000

Wheeled Bin 181-

240 Litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

366 South West          

Exeter City Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
8999

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin >240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

515 n/a

Falkirk Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
61044

Wheeled bin >240 

litres, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

301 South East

Fareham Borough 

Council Yes For all properties 47272

Non-reusable 

Sack, Reusable 

Sack

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

189 Eastern 

Fenland District Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
42512

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

612 SWaMP
Fermanagh District 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

513 n/a
Fife Council

Yes 4 bin service 155000
Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

403 n/a

Flintshire County 

Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
58688

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

232 Eastern
Forest Heath District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
25200

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

381 South West          

Forest of Dean District 

Council Yes Garden waste 16000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

62 North West

Fylde Borough Council

Yes All properties 36880

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin >240 litres, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Monthly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

25 North East
Gateshead Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
60576

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

136 East Midlands
Gedling Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
10500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

520 n/a
Glasgow City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
103000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

380 South West
Gloucester City Council

Yes
subscription-based 

service
17000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

300 South East
Gosport Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
0

Non-reusable 

Sack

Fortnightly Yes WMC

315 South East
Gravesham Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
3000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

223 Eastern
Great Yarmouth 

Borough Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
40000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes Other

P
age 28



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

254 London

Greenwich London 

Borough Council Yes
Organic (garden + 

food)
72020

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Weekly, 

Weekly

No DSO / in 

house

254 London
Greenwich London 

Borough Council
Yes Communal Flats 4200

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

336 South East
Guildford Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
20850

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

405 n/a

Gwynedd County 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
44384

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 140 litres or 

less, Wheeled bin 

181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

247 London

Hackney London 

Borough Council Yes
Properties with 

gardens
20000

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

29 North West
Halton Borough Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
41201

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

84
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Hambleton District 

Council 45.24% 3 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
39790

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

270 London

Hammersmith and 

Fulham London 

Borough Council

No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

112 East Midlands

Harborough District 

Council

56.70% 19 Yes For all properties 36000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC Weekly - Green 

Wheelie bin for 

Garden & food 

waste

Weekly - small Kitchen 

caddy &  Large Green 

Wheelie bin for Garden & 

food waste. Compostable 

liners not provided

246 London

Haringey London 

Borough Council Yes

Mixed Food and 

Garden - Kerbside 

Properties

72000

Reusable Sack Weekly No WMC

199 Eastern
Harlow District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
28205

Non-reusable 

Sack

Other Yes WMC

199 Eastern

Harlow District Council

Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - fortnightly 

collection

200

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

83
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Harrogate Borough 

Council

34.60% 8 Yes Bin scheme 43000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly service 

to approx 42,700 

properties  

Customers in an 

area that covered 

by this service, may 

put out  garden 

waste in HBC 

green sacks and 

leave these with 

normal domestic 

refuse for 

collection. 

 The garden waste sacks 

cost £7.66 per roll (£4.60 

for senior citizens). 

263 London
Harrow London 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
72100

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

299 South East

Hart District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
7000

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

4 North East
Hartlepool Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
39000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 29



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

289 South East
Hastings Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
5200

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

298 South East

Havant Borough 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
5294

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

241 London

Havering London 

Borough Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - fortnightly 

collection

21000

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

241 London

Havering London 

Borough Council Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - weekly 

collection

0

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly Yes WMC

148 West Midlands
Herefordshire Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
82935

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly Yes WMC

214 Eastern
Hertsmere Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
35000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

99 East Midlands
High Peak Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
39970

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

504 n/a
Highland Council

Yes
Garden waste 

collection
68500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

262 London
Hillingdon London 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
86000

Reusable Sack Weekly No DSO / in 

house

111 East Midlands

Hinckley and Bosworth 

Borough Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
40024

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

342 South East
Horsham District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
48432

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

261 London
Hounslow London 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
72000

Reusable Sack Weekly No WMC

188 Eastern

Huntingdonshire District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
63220

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly - 

Mingled Green 

Wheelie bin garden 

& food waste

Fortnightly - Mingled 

Green Wheelie bin 

garden & food waste (no 

kitchen caddy provided)

61 North West
Hyndburn Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
14000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

518 n/a

Inverclyde Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
21456

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

231 Eastern

Ipswich Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
45650

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

401 n/a
Isle of Anglesey County 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
33600

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

306 South East
Isle of Wight Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
0

Non-reusable 

Sack

Fortnightly Yes Other

245 London

Islington London 

Borough Council Yes

For all street 

properties with 

gardens

46000

Reusable Sack Weekly No DSO / in 

house

127 East Midlands
Kettering Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
43000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

222 Eastern

Kings Lynn and West 

Norfolk Borough 

Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
17500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

75
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Kingston upon Hull City 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
96410

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 30



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

92
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Kirklees Metropolitan 

Council Yes

ad-hoc Ring in to 

request garden waste 

collection

0

Householder 

provides

On Demand Yes DSO / in 

house

72 North West

KNowsley Metropolitan 

Borough Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
62000

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

268 London
Lambeth London 

Borough Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
5000

Reusable Sack Weekly Yes WMC

60 North West
Lancaster City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
47960

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

620 arc21
Larne Borough Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
13000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

91
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Leeds City Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
175000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

107 East Midlands
Leicester City Council

No n/a 0
n/a n/a No n/a

288 South East Lewes District Council No n/a 0 n/a n/a No n/a

253 London

Lewisham London 

Borough Council Yes

Paid for garden waste 

bag scheme - open to 

all

80000

Non-reusable 

Sack

On Demand Yes DSO / in 

house

164 West Midlands

Lichfield District Council

57.84% 16 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
43106

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly - Brown 

wheelie bin - food 

and green 

Fortnightly - mingled 

Brown wheelie bin (with 

kitchen caddy) 

605 n/a
Limavady Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
8987

Householder 

provides

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

120 East Midlands
Lincoln City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
30500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

628 arc21
Lisburn Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
45009

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

71 North West
Liverpool City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
147000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

181 Eastern
Luton Borough Council

Yes
green garden 

collections
66000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

608 n/a
Magherafelt District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
15250

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

314 South East

Maidstone Borough 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
65588

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin >240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

198 Eastern 

Maldon District Council

Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - weekly 

collection

7661

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Weekly, 

Weekly

Yes WMC

146 West Midlands
Malvern Hills District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
2500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

49 North West
Manchester City 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
169795

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

135 East Midlands

Mansfield District 

Council Yes
majority of properties 

(except some flats)
36000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

313 South East

Medway Council

Yes Mixed Organics 101230

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly, 

Weekly

No WMC

110 East Midlands
Melton Borough Council

Yes
Subscription service 

open to all
7000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

390 South West

Mendip District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
7550

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 141-180 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

413 n/a
Merthyr Tydfil County 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
25112

Reusable Sack Weekly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 31



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

256 London
Merton London 

Borough Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
80072

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

365 South West

Mid Devon District 

Council Yes
compostable waste 

collection
27890

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

230 Eastern
Mid Suffolk District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
9699

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

341 South East

Mid Sussex District 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
13650

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

3 North East
Middlesbrough Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
40000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

523 n/a
Midlothian Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
35040

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

279 South East
Milton Keynes Council

Yes
Food and garden 

waste
106906

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres

Weekly No WMC

335 South East

Mole Valley District 

Council

56.69% 20 Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
11075

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC Fortnightly: 'Opt in' 

scheme.

Annual cost for hiring and 

collection of the bin is £47 

per wheeled bin. Residents 

can hire a maximum of 

three wheeled bins per 

household.

Weekly - Kitchen caddy 

and outide larger bin 

provided (not with liners )

415 n/a
Monmouthshire County 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - pay to use
40803

Reusable Sack Weekly Yes DSO / in 

house

505 n/a
Moray Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
43074

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

602 n/a
Moyle District Council

Yes
Garden waste 

collection
5000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

411 n/a

Neath Port Talbot 

County Borough 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
60200

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

297 South East
New Forest District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
9000

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

134 East Midlands
Newark and Sherwood 

District Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
50808

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

24 North East
Newcastle upon Tyne 

City Council
Yes chargeable service 0

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

163 West Midlands
Newcastle-under-Lyme 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
48429

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

240 London
Newham London 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
75000

Householder 

provides

On Demand No DSO / in 

house

420 n/a
Newport City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
48500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

617 SWaMP
Newry and Mourne 

District Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
20142

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

622 arc21
Newtownabbey 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
32950

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

526 n/a
North Ayrshire Council

Yes
Mixed food and 

garden waste
64628

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

364 South West
North Devon District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
36393

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

374 South West
North Dorset District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
30860

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

625 arc21
North Down Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
26000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

98 East Midlands
North East Derbyshire 

District Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
44600

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

76
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

North East Lincolnshire 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
55000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 32



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

213 Eastern
North Hertfordshire 

District Council
Yes

For all properties 

(Non-flats)
50400

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

119 East Midlands
North Kesteven District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
46000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

519 n/a
North Lanarkshire 

Council
Yes

Majority of kerbside 

properties
108000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

77
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

North Lincolnshire 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
70796

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

221 Eastern
North Norfolk District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
17500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

385 South West North Somerset Council 58.43% 15 Yes For all properties with 

gardens

76079 Reusable Sack Fortnightly No WMC Fortnightly March - 

November; Monthly 

December - Feb 

(green council 

branded sacks 

either provided by 

the council or extra 

can be bought)

Weekly - 5 Litre Kitchen 

food caddy and 23 litre 

recepticle. Compostable 

liners are not provided by 

council

23 North East

North Tyneside 

Metropolitan Borough 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
70000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

172 West Midlands
North Warwickshire 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
25113

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

109 East Midlands

North West 

Leicestershire District 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
39998

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

126 East Midlands
Northampton Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
65000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

702 North East

Northumberland 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme offered to 

75% dependant on 

location

22000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

220 Eastern
Norwich City Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
7800

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

133 East Midlands
Nottingham City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
105000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

171 West Midlands

Nuneaton and 

Bedworth Borough 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
53822

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

108 East Midlands
Oadby and Wigston 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
22538

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

48 North West
Oldham Metropolitan 

Borough Council
Yes All properties 86000

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

611 SWaMP
Omagh District Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
9920

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

502 n/a
Orkney Islands Council

No n/a 0
n/a n/a No n/a

325 South East
Oxford City Council

Yes
Chargeable garden 

waste service
12000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

409 n/a
Pembrokeshire County 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
4050

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

59 North West
Pendle Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
25660

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

509 n/a
Perth and Kinross 

Council
Yes Garden only collection 600

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

509 n/a
Perth and Kinross 

Council
Yes

food and garden 

waste
56000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

P
age 33



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

187 Eastern
Peterborough City 

Council
Yes Garden Waste 60969

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

363 South West
Plymouth City Council

Yes
All properties except 

high rise
101854

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No Other

369 South West

Poole Borough Council

Yes

Chargeable Garden 

Waste Service - open 

to all

21500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

293 South East
Portsmouth City Council

Yes Green Waste Club 3578
Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

407 n/a

Powys County Council

Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - used as last 

resort - only in 

extreme cases (i.e. 

disabled/elderly with 

No family/friends to 

help)

1000

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly Yes DSO / in 

house

58 North West
Preston City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
45000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

373 South West
Purbeck District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
22040

Householder 

provides

Weekly Yes DSO / in 

house

275 South East

Reading Borough 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
17000

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

239 London
Redbridge London 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
79422

Reusable Sack Weekly No WMC

2 North East
Redcar and Cleveland 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
51000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

145 West Midlands
Redditch Borough 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

334 South East

Reigate and Banstead 

Borough Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
11000

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

525 n/a
Renfrewshire Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
54069

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

418 n/a

Rhondda CyNon Taf 

County Borough 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
105242

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

57 North West
Ribble Valley Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
23032

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

260 London

Richmond upon 

Thames London 

Borough Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
18000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

82
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Richmondshire District 

Council

42.61% 6 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
22071

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

140 litre bin 

collected fortnightly 

from March to 

November (21 

collections).

Charge £17 per year for a 

140 litre bin collected 

fortnightly from March to 

November (21 collections). 

Additional bins charged at 

£12 per year.

47 North West
Rochdale Metropolitan 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
58000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

197 Eastern

Rochford District 

Council
66.75% 1 Yes For all properties 34598

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less

Weekly No WMC Weekly - Mixed 

wheelie bin for 

garden & food 

waste combined.

Weekly - Kitchen caddy 

& wheelie bin for garden 

& food waste combined 

56 North West

Rossendale Borough 

Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
30800

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

287 South East
Rother District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
39300

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

P
age 34



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

88
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Rotherham Metropolitan 

Borough Council Yes
Organic waste 

collections
110534

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

269 London

Royal Borough of 

Kensington and 

Chelsea

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
7000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Reusable 

Sack

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No WMC

257 London

Royal Borough of 

Kingston upon Thames

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
6100

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC 240 litre bin 

collected fortnightly 

apart from 

Christmas & New 

Year period). Max 3 

bins per property. 

Charges £75 per year for a 

240 litre bin collected 

fortnightly (only break in 

service between Christmas 

and New Year period).

273 South East

Royal Borough of 

Windsor and 

Maidenhead

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
10000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

170 West Midlands
Rugby Borough Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
41010

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

333 South East
Runnymede Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
5200

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

132 East Midlands
Rushcliffe Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
31650

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

296 South East

Rushmoor Borough 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
7200

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

106 East Midlands

Rutland County Council

59.83% 10 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
15273

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC Fortnightly April - 

October, Monthly 

March - November,  

Green Wheelie bin

81
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Ryedale District Council

52.97% 1 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
24560

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

Garden waste 

collection service is 

suspended for 

winter months 

(December, - 

February).

From 1 June 2014 

collections of garden waste 

became a subscription only 

service. The service costs 

£27 per bin, payable in 

advance, less than £2 a 

collection.

46 North West
Salford City Council

Yes
For all properties 

except high rise
97570

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

177 West Midlands
Sandwell Metropolitan 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
112000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

80
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Scarborough Borough 

Council
40.89% 7 Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
56000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly 

collection service 

using wheeled bins 

and sacks.

Brown bins are a one-off 

payment of £22 including 

delivery. Sacks are also 

collected.

530 n/a

Scottish Borders 

Council Yes

For all properties with 

gardens in urban 

areas

35000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

389 South West

Sedgemoor District 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
8895

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

70 North West

Sefton Metropolitan 

Borough Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
100000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Weekly

No DSO / in 

house

79
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Selby District Council
43.27% 5 Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
32000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC Fortnightly 

collection service.

312 South East

SeveNoaks District 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
48680

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

P
age 35



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

87
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Sheffield City Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
245000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

311 South East
Shepway District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
11646

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

501 n/a Shetland Isles Council No n/a 0 n/a n/a No n/a

705 West Midlands

Shropshire Council

Yes

Former South 

Shropshire and North 

Shropshire area

48000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

705 West Midlands

Shropshire Council

Yes

Former Shrewsbury, 

Osewstry and 

BridgeNorth areas

87000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

274 South East
Slough Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
21600

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

176 West Midlands
Solihull Metropolitan 

Borough Council
43.92% 11 Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
88540

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC Fortnightly 

collection service.

531 n/a
South Ayrshire Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
44806

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Monthly No DSO / in 

house

281 South East
South Bucks District 

Council
Yes Garden 5500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

186 Eastern 

South Cambridgeshire 

District Council
55.97% 25 Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
62970

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly - Green 

Wheelie bin - Mixed 

garden & food 

waste

Fortnightly - smaller 

kitchen caddy & Green 

Wheelie bin - Mixed 

garden & food 

97 East Midlands
South Derbyshire 

District Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
41000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

392 South West

South Gloucestershire 

Council

51.42% 5 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
108211

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC Fortnightly 

collection service.

From 31 March 2014  

service charge £36 per 

year. Alternatively, or in 

addition,  sacks for garden 

waste £2 each. This 

includes  collection fee 

which needs to be booked, 

either online or by phone.

Weekly food waste collection service.

362 South West

South Hams District 

Council

Yes
For all properties 

suitable for bins
36144

Wheeled bin >240 

litres, Wheeled 

bin 140 litres or 

less, Wheeled bin 

141-180 litres

Weekly, 

Weekly, 

Weekly

No DSO / in 

house

118 East Midlands       
South Holland District 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

117 East Midlands
South Kesteven District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
27000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

35 North West
South Lakeland District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
52005

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

529 n/a
South Lanarkshire 

Council
Yes For all properties 146404

Householder 

provides

On Demand No DSO / in 

house

219 Eastern 

South Norfolk District 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
17461

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

125 East Midlands

South 

Northamptonshire 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
35000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

324 South East

South Oxfordshire 

District Council 65.32% 2 Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
22813

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC Fortnightly year 

round 'opt in' 

service.

£34 for a bin Weekly - Kitchen caddy 

& Larger outdoor bin 

(liners not provided) 

P
age 36



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

55 North West
South Ribble Borough 

Council
Yes Garden and food 39000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

388 South West

South Somerset District 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
6580

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 141-180 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

162 West Midlands
South Staffordshire 

District Council
Yes

Majority of kerbside 

properties
40000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

22 North East
South Tyneside Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
54000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

292 South East

Southampton City 

Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
20780

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin >240 litres, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

194 Eastern

Southend-on-Sea 

Borough Council Yes

Garden Waste 

Scheme - Wheeled 

bin or sacks

17000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Weekly, 

Weekly

Yes WMC

252 London

Southwark London 

Borough Council
Yes

Food and Garden 

Waste Service
69190

Non-reusable 

Sack, Other, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly, 

Weekly, 

Weekly

No WMC

332 South East
Spelthorne Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
8000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

212 Eastern

St Albans City and 

District Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
48000

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No WMC

229 Eastern 

St Edmundsbury 

Borough Council

Yes

Approximately 98% of 

properties - 

(predominantely 

properties with 

gardens)

46119

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

69 North West

St Helens Metropolitan 

Borough Council Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
67500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

161 West Midlands
Stafford Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
54300

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

160 West Midlands

Staffordshire Moorlands 

District Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
43000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly  - Brown 

wheelie bin for 

garden & food 

waste

Fortnightly - small kitchen 

caddy and large brown 

wheelie bin - combined 

with garden waste 

(compostable liners not 

provided) 

211 Eastern
Stevenage Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
34440

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

511 n/a
Stirling Council

Yes
Fortnightly garden-

only collection
35744

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

45 North West

Stockport Metropolitan 

Borough Council
60.97% 6 1 Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
100000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly - Green 

Wheelie bin 

(garden & food 

waste) 

Weekly - Green Kitchen 

caddy / green wheelie bin 

(garden & food waste) 

1 North East
Stockton-on-Tees 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
70738

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

158 West Midlands
Stoke on Trent City 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
88231

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

607 n/a
Strabane District 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

P
age 37



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

169 West Midlands       

Stratford-on-Avon 

District Council

60.28% 8 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
54580

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No WMC Fortnightly - Green 

wheelie bin - mixed 

kitchen & green 

waste. Sacks are 

collected from 

households that do 

not have wheeled 

bins.

Fortnightly - Green 

wheelie bin - mixed 

kitchen & green waste. 

Kitchen caddy available 

to those who want one - 

but not rolled out as 

standard 

379 South West
Stroud District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
0

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly Yes WMC

228 Eastern

Suffolk Coastal District 

Council

56.66% 21 Yes
All fortnightly 

properties
57495

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less

Fortnightly No Other All accessible 

properties in 

Suffolk Coastal 

receive a fortnightly 

brown bin collection 

service for garden 

and food waste

All accessible properties 

in Suffolk Coastal receive 

a fortnightly brown bin 

collection service for 

garden and food waste

21 North East

Sunderland City 

Metropolitan Borough 

Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
85000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

331 South East

Surrey Heath Borough 

Council

63.77% 4 Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
6000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC Monthly - Green 

Wheelie bin  ‘Opt 

in’service.

12 Months - £49.95

24 Months £89.91 (10% 

discount), 36 Months – 

119.88 (20% discount)

(or Pay Monthly ‘DD’ £4.16) 

Weekly - Silver Kitchen 

Caddy / green outdoor 

larger food only  bin 

(compostable liners not 

provided) 

255 London
Sutton London Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
62689

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

310 South East
Swale Borough Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
6400

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

412 n/a
Swansea City and 

County Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
98674

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

393 South West

Swindon Borough 

Council

44.33% 10 Yes
Subscription garden 

waste collection
90700

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Fortnightly Yes Other Fortnightlyexcept 

for a fortnight at 

Christmas.   

Includes a wheelie 

bin or an annual 

supply of 100 bags 

for households that 

are unsuitable for a 

wheelie bin.

The service costs £40 

annually for a fortnightly 

collection throughout the 

year (except for a fortnight 

at Christmas). This includes 

a wheelie bin or an annual 

supply of 100 bags for 

households that are 

unsuitable for a wheelie bin.

44 North West
Tameside Metropolitan 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
98869

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

159 West Midlands
Tamworth Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
30405

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

330 South East

Tandridge District 

Council

Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all 

but only 6000 

subscriptions 

available

6000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

387 South West

Taunton Deane 

Borough Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
9000

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

P
age 38



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

361 South West          

Teignbridge District 

Council

56.38% 23 Yes All Properties Organic 58541

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly  - Green 

Wheelie bin - Mixed 

Garden and 

Kitchen waste

Fortnightly                                       

Small Kitchen caddy and 

large green Wheelie bin / 

mixed with garden waste

151 West Midlands

Telford and Wrekin 

Borough Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
65789

Reusable sack, 

Wheeled bin 140 

litres or less, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No WMC

196 Eastern
Tendring District 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

295 South East
Test Valley Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
12000

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

378 South West
Tewkesbury Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
13500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

309 South East
Thanet District Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
6000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

210 Eastern

Three Rivers District 

Council
61.96% 5 Yes all properties 36550

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

Weekly - Brown 

Wheelie bin for 

Garden & food 

waste

Weekly - Kitchen caddy 

and large brown wheelie 

bin. Compostable bags 

not provided 

193 Eastern
Thurrock Borough 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
63899

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

308 South East
Tonbridge and Malling 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
49000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

360 South West
Torbay Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
65250

Householder 

provides

On Demand Yes WMC

416 n/a
Torfaen County 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
37896

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

359 South West
Torridge District Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
18989

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

236 London

Tower Hamlets London 

Borough Council
Yes

Garden waste 

scheme to properties 

with gardens

22269

Reusable Sack Weekly No WMC

43 North West

Trafford Metropolitan 

Borough Council
47.90% 6 Yes

Mixed Garden/Food 

Waste Collection
96820

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No WMC Fortnightly 

collection of garden 

waste combined 

with food waste.

Collected with garden waste.

307 South East
Tunbridge Wells 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
41889

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

195 Eastern
Uttlesford District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
32000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

422 n/a

Vale of Glamorgan 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
55614

Non-reusable 

Sack, Reusable 

Sack

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes DSO / in 

house

323 South East

Vale of White Horse 

District Council
65.13% 3 Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
16972

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC Fortnightly - Brown 

Wheelie Bin

 'Opt in' scheme - costs £37 

per year.

Weekly - Green kitchen 

caddy & green wheelie 

bin (compostable liners 

not provided by council)

93
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

Wakefield City Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
125500

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

175 West Midlands
Walsall Metropolitan 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
93556

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

244 London

Waltham Forest 

London Borough 

Council

Yes
Mixed food and 

garden collection
66000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

P
age 39



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

244 London

Waltham Forest 

London Borough 

Council

Yes
Non-food collection 

households
5000

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No WMC

267 London
Wandsworth London 

Borough Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

26 North West
Warrington Borough 

Council
42.94% 13 Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
72491

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

Fortnightly - green 

wheeled bin.

168 West Midlands

Warwick District 

Council
56.52% 22 Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
48084

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC Fortnightly 

collection of garden 

waste combined 

with food waste.

No limit on number of green 

bins per property but one 

off delivery charge of £39 

each.

Collected with garden waste.

209 Eastern
Watford Borough 

Council
Yes All properties 37840

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

227 Eastern
Waveney District 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
48000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

329 South East
Waverley Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
3250

Reusable Sack Fortnightly Yes WMC

286 South East
Wealden District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
64000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

124 East Midlands
Wellingborough 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
33000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No Other

208 Eastern
Welwyn Hatfield District 

Council
Yes Kerbside organics 40475

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

276 South East
West Berkshire Council

Yes Green / Food 62603
Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

358 South West

West Devon Borough 

Council

57.01% 17 Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
24862

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No WMC Fortnightly - 4 

sacks (not black) of 

garden waste 

mixed with 

BROWN card only 

can be put out

Weekly - kitchen caddy 

and larger outside 

recepticle. Compostable 

bags are not provided but 

can be bought from the 

council / or other outlets 

372 South West
West Dorset District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
49260

Householder 

provides

Weekly Yes DSO / in 

house

517 n/a
West Dunbartonshire 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
29909

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

54 North West
West Lancashire 

District Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
47570

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

116 East Midlands
West Lindsey District 

Council
Yes

Garden waste 

collection service
38300

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

521 n/a
West Lothian Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
69253

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Monthly No DSO / in 

house

322 South East

West Oxfordshire 

District Council
60.11% 9 Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
43000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC Fortnightly - Black 

Wheelie bin. Free 

service but users 

must 'opt in' /sign 

up

Weekly - Kitchen caddy 

and outside waste bin  

(compostible liners are 

not provided)

386 South West

West Somerset District 

Council Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
1155

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin 181-240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

503 n/a
Western Isles Council 

(Eilean Siar)
Yes

Fortnightly organic 

collections
9258

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

503 n/a
Western Isles Council 

(Eilean Siar)
Yes

Weekly organic 

collections
2000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Weekly No DSO / in 

house

238 London
Westminster City 

Council
No n/a 0

n/a n/a No n/a

371 South West

Weymouth and 

Portland Borough 

Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
500

Non-reusable 

Sack

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

P
age 40



Garden Waste Collections Annex B

42 North West
Wigan Metropolitan 

Borough Council
Yes Green Bin 104000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

709 South West

Wiltshire Council

Yes garden waste only 145000

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres, 

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

294 South East
Winchester City Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
41500

Reusable Sack Fortnightly No WMC

68 North West

Wirral Metropolitan 

Borough Council
Yes

Subscription For all 

properties with 

gardens

111200

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC Fortnightly 

suspended over 

Christmas and New 

Year period.

£35 for first bin (or £30 if 

subscribing online). £20 for 

each additional bin.

328 South East

Woking Borough 

Council

58.57% 13 Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
12896

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin >240 

litres, Wheeled 

bin 140 litres or 

less

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC Fortnightly 'opt in' 

yearly subscription.

£40 for a bin - £21 for those 

is receipt of benefits.

Weekly - silver seven-

litre kitchen caddy and 

one green 23-litre 

collection bin for the 

weekly collection of food 

waste.Compostable 

liners not provided 

272 South East

Wokingham Council

Yes
Subscription service 

open to all
13000

Non-reusable 

Sack, Wheeled 

bin >240 litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

Yes WMC

174 West Midlands
Wolverhampton City 

Council
Yes

For all properties with 

gardens
98000

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Fortnightly No WMC

143 West Midlands
Worcester City Council

Yes
Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
4770

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

340 South East

Worthing Borough 

Council Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all - 

Weekly

39000

Non-reusable 

Sack

Weekly Yes DSO / in 

house

340 South East
Worthing Borough 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
10000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Less than 

Monthly

Yes DSO / in 

house

406 n/a
Wrexham County 

Borough Council
Yes

For all properties with 

sep food
41200

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

406 n/a
Wrexham County 

Borough Council
Yes For all properties 21000

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No DSO / in 

house

142 West Midlands
Wychavon District 

Council
Yes

Subscription bin 

scheme
11777

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

280 South East

Wycombe District 

Council Yes All properties 63252

Reusable Sack, 

Wheeled bin >240 

litres

Fortnightly, 

Fortnightly

No WMC

53 North West
Wyre Borough Council

Yes
For all properties with 

gardens
45422

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly No WMC

141 West Midlands
Wyre Forest District 

Council
Yes

Subscription garden 

scheme - open to all
2200

Wheeled bin 181-

240 litres

Fortnightly Yes WMC

78
Yorkshire and 

the Humber

York City Council

45.96% 7 2 Yes

For all eligible 

properties with 

gardens

61440

Wheeled bin 141-

180 litres

Fortnightly Yes DSO / in 

house

Standard service is 

1 x 180 litre bin 

emptied fortnightly 

from April to Oct.

Householders with 

additional bins are required 

to pay annual charge of £35 

to have bin collected 

fortnightly from April to 

October.

WMC = Waste Management Company

P
age 41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Report on Discretionary Charges in Waste Management
	Annex A
	Annex B
	Annex B2


